## TRADEMARK ASSIGNMENT

Electronic Version v1.1 Stylesheet Version v1.1

SUBMISSION TYPE:	NEW ASSIGNMENT
NATURE OF CONVEYANCE:	SECURITY INTEREST
EFFECTIVE DATE:	04/06/2005

#### **CONVEYING PARTY DATA**

Name Formerly		Execution Date	Entity Type	
Zing Wireless, Inc.		04/06/2005	CORPORATION: CALIFORNIA	

#### **RECEIVING PARTY DATA**

Name:	Commerce Bank, N.A.
Street Address:	535 East Crescent Avenue
City:	Ramsey
State/Country:	NEW JERSEY
Postal Code:	07446
Entity Type:	Banking Association:

#### PROPERTY NUMBERS Total: 1

Property Type	Number	Word Mark
Serial Number:	78514053	GOZING

#### **CORRESPONDENCE DATA**

Fax Number: (212)238-3100

Correspondence will be sent via US Mail when the fax attempt is unsuccessful.

Phone: 212-238-3244

Email: jtelesford@emmetmarvin.com

Correspondent Name: Janelle Telesford, Legal Assistant

Address Line 1: Emmet, Marvin & Martin, LLP

Address Line 2: 120 Broadway

Address Line 4: New York, NEW YORK 10271

NAME OF SUBMITTER:	Janelle Telesford
Signature:	/Janelle Telesford/
Date:	04/21/2005
	TRADEMARK

REEL: 003070 FRAME: 0223

Total Attachments: 20 source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page1.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page2.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page3.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page4.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page5.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page6.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page7.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page8.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page9.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page10.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page11.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page12.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page13.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page14.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page15.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page16.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page17.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page18.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page19.tif source=IP Security Agreement - Zing Wireless#page20.tif

# INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

**April 6, 2005** 

from

ZING WIRELESS, INC., as Grantor,

to

COMMERCE BANK, N.A.

778559

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

SECTION 1.	Grant of Security.	. 1
SECTION 2.	Security for Obligations	.3
SECTION 3.	Grantor Remains Liable	.3
SECTION 4.	Representations and Warranties.	.4
SECTION 5.	<u>Further Assurances</u> .	.6
SECTION 6.	Transfers and Other Liens	.8
SECTION 7.	Bank Appointed Attorney-in-Fact	.8
SECTION 8.	Bank May Perform.	9
SECTION 9.	The Bank's Duties	9
SECTION 10.	Remedies.	9
SECTION 11.	Indemnity and Expenses	0
SECTION 12.	Amendments; Waivers; Supplements; Etc	0
SECTION 13.	Addresses for Notices	0
SECTION 14.	Continuing Security Interest, Assignments 1	1
SECTION 15.	Release and Termination	1
SECTION 16.	Execution in Counterparts	2
SECTION 17.	Governing Law; Terms	2
EXHIBIT A		
SCHEDULES	<b>S</b>	
Schedule I	- Patents and Patent Applications	
Schedule II	- Trademark Registrations and Applications	
Schedule III	- Licenses	

## INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT dated as of April 6, 2005 made by ZING WIRELESS, INC., a California corporation, with an office at 21 River Road, Wilton, Connecticut (the "Grantor"), to COMMERCE BANK, N.A. (the "Bank").

#### PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS

- (1) The Grantor and the Bank have entered into a Guaranty Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2005 (said Agreement, as it may hereafter be amended, restated or otherwise modified from time to time, being the "Guaranty Agreement") pursuant to which the Grantor guarantees certain obligations of Greenfield Online, Inc. ("Greenfield") under a Credit Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2005, between Greenfield and the Bank (the "Credit Agreement"; the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein being used herein as therein defined).
- (2) It is a condition precedent to the making of Loans by the Bank that the Grantor shall have granted the security interest and made the pledge and grant of the security interest contemplated by this Agreement.

**NOW, THEREFORE**, in consideration of the premises and in order to induce the Bank to make Loans under the Credit Agreement from time to time, the Grantor hereby agrees with the Bank for its benefit as follows:

### SECTION 1. Grant of Security

The Grantor hereby grants and pledges to the Bank and hereby grants to the Bank a security interest in the following, in each case, as to each type of property described below, whether now owned or hereafter acquired by the Grantor, and whether now or hereafter existing (collectively, the "Intellectual Property Collateral"):

all patents, patent applications and patentable inventions, (a) including, without limitation, each patent identified in Schedule I attached hereto and made a part hereof and each patent application identified in such Schedule I, and including, without limitation, (i) all inventions and improvements described and claimed therein and the right to make, use or sell the same, (ii) the right to sue or otherwise recover for any misappropriations thereof, (iii) all income, royalties, damages and other payments now and hereafter due and/or payable with respect thereto (including, without limitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection therewith, and damages and payments for past and future infringements thereof), and (iv) all rights corresponding thereto throughout the world and all reissues, divisions, continuations, continuations-in-part, substitutes, renewals and extensions thereof, all improvements

thereon and all other rights of any kind whatsoever of the Grantor accruing thereunder or pertaining thereto (the "Patents");

- (b) all trademarks, service marks, trade names, trade dress or other indicia of trade origin, trademark and service mark registrations, and applications for trademark or service mark registrations and any renewals thereof, including, without limitation, each registration and application identified in Schedule II attached hereto and made a part hereof, and including, without limitation, (i) the right to sue or otherwise recover for any and all past, present and future infringements and misappropriations thereof, (ii) all income, royalties, damages and other payments now and hereafter due and/or payable with respect thereto (including, without limitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection therewith, and damages and payments for past or future infringements thereof), and (iii) all rights corresponding thereto throughout the world and all other rights of any kind whatsoever of the Grantor accruing thereunder or pertaining thereto, together in each case with the goodwill of the business connected with the use of, and symbolized by, each such trademark, service mark, trade name, trade dress or other indicia of trade origin (the "Trademarks");
- (c) all copyrights, whether or not the underlying works of authorship have been published, and all works of authorship and other intellectual property rights therein, all copyrights of works based on, incorporated in, derived from or relating to works covered by such copyrights, all right, title and interest to make and exploit all derivative works based on or adopted from works covered by such copyrights, and all copyright registrations and copyright applications, and any renewals or extensions thereof, including, without limitation, each registration and application identified in Schedule III, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and including, without limitation, (i) the rights to print, publish and distribute any of the foregoing, (ii) the right to sue or otherwise recover for any and all past, present and future infringements and misappropriations thereof, (iii) all income, royalties, damages and other payments now and hereafter due and/or payable with respect thereto (including, without limitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection therewith, and damages and payments for past, present or future infringements thereof), and (iv) all other rights of any kind whatsoever of such Grantor accruing thereunder or pertaining thereto ("Copyrights");
- (d) all trade secrets and all confidential and proprietary information, including know-how, trade secrets, manufacturing and production processes and techniques, inventions, research and development information, technical data, financial, marketing and business data, pricing and cost information, business and marketing plans, and customer and supplier lists and information, including, without limitation, any of the foregoing identified in <u>Schedule IV</u>, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and including, without limitation, (i) the right to sue or otherwise recover for any and all past, present and future infringements and misappropriations thereof, (ii) all income, royalties, damages and other payments now and hereafter due and/or payable with respect thereto

(including, without limitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection therewith, and damages and payments for past, present or future infringements thereof), and (iii) all other rights of any kind whatsoever of such Grantor accruing thereunder or pertaining thereto (collectively, the "<u>Trade Secrets</u>");

- (e) all licenses or agreements, whether written or oral, providing for the grant by or to any Grantor of: (A) any right to use any Trademark or Trade Secret, (B) any right to manufacture, use or sell any invention covered in whole or in part by a Patent, and (C) any right under any Copyright including, without limitation, the grant of rights to manufacture, distribute, exploit and sell materials derived from any Copyright including, without limitation, any of the foregoing identified in Schedule V, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and including, without limitation, (i) the right to sue or otherwise recover for any and all past, present and future infringements and misappropriations of any of the foregoing, (ii) all income, royalties, damages and other payments now and hereafter due and/or payable with respect thereto (including, without limitation, payments under all licenses entered into in connection therewith, and damages and payments for past, present or future infringements thereof), and (iii) all other rights of any kind whatsoever of such Grantor accruing thereunder or pertaining thereto (the "Licenses");
- (f) all proceeds of any of the foregoing Patents, Trademarks, Copyrights and Licenses, including, without limitation, any claims by the Grantor against third parties for infringement of the Patents, Trademarks Copyrights or Licenses; and
- (g) the security interest is granted in conjunction with the security interests granted to the Bank pursuant to the Guarantor Security Agreement.

#### SECTION 2. Security for Obligations

This Agreement secures the payment of all Obligations of the Grantor now or hereafter existing under the Loan Documents, whether for principal, interest, fees, expenses or otherwise (all such Obligations secured being the "Secured Obligations").

### SECTION 3. Grantor Remains Liable

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, (a) the Grantor shall remain liable under the contracts and agreements included in the Intellectual Property Collateral to which it is a party to the extent set forth therein to perform all of its duties and obligations thereunder to the same extent as if this Agreement had not been executed, (b) the exercise by the Bank of any of the rights or remedies hereunder shall not release the Grantor from any of its duties or obligations under any of the contracts and agreements included in the Intellectual Property Collateral, and (c) the Bank shall have no obligation or liability under any of the contracts and agreements included in the Intellectual Property Collateral by reason of this Agreement, nor shall the Bank be

obligated to perform any of the obligations or duties of the Grantor thereunder or to take any action to collect or enforce any claim for payment assigned hereunder.

### SECTION 4. Representations and Warranties

The Grantor represents and warrants as follows:

- (a) The Grantor is the legal and beneficial owner of the Intellectual Property Collateral pledged by the Grantor free and clear of any Lien, claim, option or right of others, except for the liens and security interests created under this Agreement or permitted under the Loan Documents. No effective financing statement or other instrument similar in effect covering all of any part of the Intellectual Property Collateral or listing the Grantor or any of its Subsidiaries or any trade name of the Grantor or any of its Subsidiaries as debtor is on file in any recording office (including, without limitation, the United States Patent and Trademark Office), except such as may have been filed in favor of the Bank relating to this Agreement or one of the other Loan Documents.
- (b) Set forth in Schedule I is a complete and accurate list of all patents owned by the Grantor. Set forth in Schedule II is a complete and accurate list of all trademark and service mark registrations and all trademark and service mark applications owned by the Grantor. Set forth in Schedule III is a complete and accurate list of all copyrights owned by the Grantor. Set forth in Schedule IV is a complete and accurate list of trade secrets and confidential and proprietary information owned by the Grantor. Set forth in Schedule V is a complete and accurate list of all Licenses in which the Grantor is (i) a licensor with respect to any of the Patents or Trademarks, or (ii) a licensee of any other Person's patents, trade names, trademarks or service marks. The Grantor has made all necessary filings and recordations to protect and maintain its interest in the patents, patent applications, trademark and service mark registrations, trademark and service mark applications, copyrights, copyright registrations, copyright applications, trade secrets, confidential and proprietary information and Licenses set forth in Schedules I, II, III, IV and V hereto except where the failure to file or record could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
- (c) Each patent, patent application, copyright or copyright application trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application of the Grantor set forth in Schedule I, II or III hereto is subsisting and has not been adjudged invalid, unregisterable or unenforceable, in whole or in part, and is valid, registerable and enforceable. Each License of the Grantor identified in Schedule V is subsisting and has not been adjudged invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, and is valid and enforceable, except as such enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and general principles of equity (whether considered in an action of law or in equity). The Grantor is not aware of any uses of any item of Intellectual Property Collateral which would be expected to lead to such item becoming invalid or unenforceable, including unauthorized uses by third parties and uses which were not

supported by the goodwill of the business connected with such Intellectual Property Collateral except where failure to do so could not be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

- (d) The Grantor has used proper statutory notice in connection with its use of each patent, registered trademark and service mark contained in Schedule I or II.
- (e) This Agreement creates in favor of the Bank a valid and perfected first and only priority security interest in the Intellectual Property Collateral of the Grantor, securing the payment of the Secured Obligations.
- (f) No consent of any Person and no authorization, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any governmental authority or regulatory body or other Person is required (i) for the grant by the Grantor of the security interest granted hereby, for the pledge by the Grantor of the Intellectual Property Collateral pursuant hereto, or for the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement by the Grantor, (ii) for the perfection or maintenance of the pledge and security interest created hereby (including the first and only priority nature of such pledge and security interest), except for the filing of financing and continuation statements under the Uniform Commercial Code, which financing statements are in proper form, and the filing and recording of this Agreement in the United States Patent and Trademark Office against each patent, patent application, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application, of the Grantor set forth in Schedule I or II hereto, or (iii) for the exercise by the Bank of its rights provided for in this Agreement or the remedies in respect of the Intellectual Property Collateral pursuant to this Agreement.
- (g) To the best of Grantor's knowledge, there are no claims by any third party relating to any item of Intellectual Property Collateral.
- (h) To the best of Grantor's knowledge, no claim has been made and is continuing or threatened that any item of Intellectual Property Collateral is invalid or unenforceable or that the use by the Grantor of any Intellectual Property Collateral does or may violate the rights of any Person. To the best of the Grantor's knowledge, there is currently no infringement or unauthorized use of any item of Intellectual Property Collateral except where such infringement could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
- (i) The Grantor has taken all reasonably necessary steps to use consistent standards of quality in the provision of all services provided under or in connection with any of the Intellectual Property Collateral and has taken all necessary steps to ensure that all licensed users of any of the Intellectual Property Collateral use such consistent standards of quality.

#### SECTION 5. Further Assurances.

- (a) The Grantor agrees that from time to time, at the expense of the Grantor, the Grantor shall promptly execute and deliver all further instruments and documents, and take all further action, that the Bank believes may be reasonably necessary in order to perfect and protect any pledge or security interest granted or purported to be granted hereby or to enable the Bank to exercise and enforce its rights and remedies hereunder with respect to any part of the Intellectual Property Collateral. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Grantor will, upon the reasonable request of the Bank, with respect to the Intellectual Property Collateral owned by the Grantor, execute and file such financing or continuation statements, or amendments thereto, and such other instruments or notices, as may be reasonably necessary or desirable, or as the Bank may reasonably request, in order to perfect and preserve the pledge and security interest granted or purported to be granted hereby.
- (b) The Grantor hereby authorizes the Bank to file one or more financing or continuation statements, and amendments thereto, relating to all or any part of the Intellectual Property Collateral without the signature of the Grantor where permitted by law. A photocopy or other reproduction of this Agreement or any financing statement covering the Intellectual Property Collateral or any part thereof will be sufficient as a financing statement where permitted by law.
- (c) The Grantor will furnish to the Bank from time to time statements and schedules further identifying and describing the Intellectual Property Collateral and such other reports in connection with the Intellectual Property Collateral as the Bank may reasonably request, all in reasonable detail.
- The Grantor agrees that, should it obtain an ownership interest in any patent, patent application, patentable invention, trademark, service mark, trade name, trade dress, other indicia of trade origin, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application, or License, which is not now a part of the Intellectual Property Collateral, (i) the provisions of Section 1 will automatically apply thereto, and (ii) any such patent, patent application, patentable invention, trademark, service mark, trade name, trade dress, indicia of trade origin, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application (together with the goodwill of the business connected with the use of same and symbolized by same), or License will automatically become part of the Intellectual Property Collateral. The Grantor further agrees that it shall deliver to the Bank a written report, in reasonable detail, on a semi-annual basis (starting, for this year, on June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2005, and thereafter on each June 30 and December 31 of each succeeding year), setting forth each new patent, patent application, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application or license that the Grantor has filed, acquired or otherwise obtained in the preceding six month reporting period. The Grantor authorizes the Bank to modify this Agreement by amending Schedules I, II and III hereto (and shall cooperate

with the Bank in effecting any such amendment) to include any patent, patent application, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application or License which becomes part of the Intellectual Property Collateral.

- With respect to each patent, patent application, trademark or (e) service mark registration, trademark or service mark application, set forth in Schedule I or II hereto, the Grantor agrees to take all necessary steps (except where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect), including, without limitation, in the United States Patent and Trademark Office or in any court, to (i) maintain each such patent, trademark or service mark registration, and (ii) pursue each such patent application, trademark or service mark application now or hereafter included in the Intellectual Property Collateral, including, without limitation, the filing of responses to office actions issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, the filing of affidavits under Sections 8 and 15 of the United States Trademark Act, the filing of divisional, continuation, continuation-in-part and substitute applications, the filing of applications for re-issue, renewal or extensions, the payment of maintenance fees, and the participation in interference, reexamination, opposition, cancellation, infringement and misappropriation proceedings. The Grantor agrees to take corresponding steps with respect to each new or acquired patent, patent application, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application to which it is now or later becomes entitled. Any and all expenses incurred in connection with such activities will be borne by the Grantor. The Grantor shall not discontinue use of or otherwise abandon any patent, patent application, trademark or service mark, trademark or service mark registration, trademark or service mark application, now or hereafter included in the Intellectual Property Collateral, unless the relevant Grantor shall have first determined in its reasonable business judgment that such use or pursuit or maintenance of same is no longer desirable in the conduct of the Grantor's business, in which case, the Grantor shall give written notice of any such abandonment or discontinuance to the Bank pursuant to the semi-annual reporting requirement contained in Section 5(d) above.
- (f) The Grantor agrees to notify the Bank promptly and in writing if it learns (i) that any item of the Intellectual Property Collateral has been determined to have become abandoned or dedicated to the public and such abandonment or dedication could reasonably be expected be have a Material Adverse Effect, (ii) of the institution of any proceeding (including, without limitation, the institution of any proceeding in the United States Patent and Trademark Office or any court) regarding any item of the Intellectual Property Collateral that could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (iii) of any adverse determination.
- (g) In the event that the Grantor makes a determination in its reasonable business judgment that any material item of the Intellectual Property Collateral is infringed or misappropriated by a third party, the Grantor shall promptly notify the Bank and will take such actions as the Grantor or the Bank reasonably deems appropriate under the circumstances to protect such Intellectual Property Collateral,

including, without limitation, suing for infringement or misappropriation and for an injunction against such infringement or misappropriation. Any expense in connection with such activities will be borne by the Grantor.

- (h) The Grantor shall continue to use proper statutory notice in connection with its use of each of its patents, registered trademarks and service marks contained in Schedule I or II.
- (i) The Grantor shall take all appropriate steps (if the failure to do so would have a Material Adverse Effect) which it or the Bank deems appropriate under the circumstances to preserve and protect its Intellectual Property Collateral, including, without limitation, maintaining the quality of any and all products or services used or provided in connection with any of the Intellectual Property Collateral, consistent with the quality of the products and services as of the date hereof, and taking all steps necessary to ensure that all licensed users of any of the Intellectual Property Collateral use such consistent standards of quality.

#### SECTION 6. Transfers and Other Liens

The Grantor agrees that it shall not (i) sell, assign (by operation of law or otherwise) or otherwise dispose of or grant any option with respect to, any of the Intellectual Property Collateral except where such sale, assignment or disposal could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, or (ii) create or suffer to exist any Lien upon or with respect to any of the Intellectual Property Collateral except for the pledge and security interest created by this Agreement and Permitted Liens.

#### SECTION 7. Bank Appointed Attorney-in-Fact.

The Grantor hereby irrevocably appoints the Bank the Grantor's attorney-in-fact, with full authority in the place and stead of the Grantor and in the name of the Grantor or otherwise, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default and upon notice to the Grantor to take any action and to execute any instrument that the Bank may deem necessary or advisable to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement, including, without limitation:

- (a) to ask for, demand, collect, sue for, recover, compromise, receive and give acquittance and receipts for moneys due and to become due under or in respect of any of the Intellectual Property Collateral;
- (b) to receive, endorse and collect any drafts or other instruments, documents and chattel paper, in connection with clause (a) above; and
- (c) to file any claims or take any action or institute any proceedings that the Bank may deem necessary or desirable to enforce the rights of the Bank with respect to any of the Intellectual Property Collateral.

## SECTION 8. Bank May Perform.

If the Grantor fails to perform any agreement contained herein, the Bank may itself, upon fifteen (15) days' notice to the Grantor, perform, or cause performance of, such agreement, and the reasonable expenses of the Bank incurred in connection therewith shall be borne by the Grantor.

## SECTION 9. The Bank's Duties

The powers conferred on the Bank hereunder are solely to protect its interest in the Intellectual Property Collateral and shall not impose any duty upon it to exercise any such powers. Except for the safe custody of any Intellectual Property Collateral in its possession and the accounting for moneys actually received by it hereunder, the Bank shall have no duty as to any Intellectual Property Collateral, whether or not the Bank has or is deemed to have knowledge of such matters, or as to the taking of any necessary steps to preserve rights against any parties or any other rights pertaining to any Intellectual Property Collateral. The Bank shall exercise reasonable care in the custody and preservation of any Intellectual Property Collateral in its possession and shall accord such Intellectual Property Collateral treatment equal to that which the Bank accords its own property.

### SECTION 10. Remedies.

- (a) The Grantor acknowledges and affirms that the rights and remedies of the Bank with respect to the Intellectual Property Collateral made and granted hereby are more fully set forth in the Guarantor Security Agreement and the Guaranty, the terms and provisions of which are incorporated by reference herein as if fully set forth herein.
- (b) In the event of any sale, assignment, or other disposition of any of the Intellectual Property Collateral, the goodwill of the business connected with and symbolized by any of the Intellectual Property Collateral subject to such disposition will be included, and the Grantor will supply to the Bank or its designee the Grantor's know-how and expertise, and documents and things embodying the same, relating to the manufacture, distribution, advertising and sale of products or the provision of services relating to any Intellectual Property Collateral subject to such disposition and, including, but not limited to, the Grantor's customer lists and other records and documents relating to such Intellectual Property Collateral and to the manufacture, distribution, advertising and sale of such products and services.

The Bank may exercise any and all rights and remedies of the Grantor in respect of the Intellectual Property Collateral.

## SECTION 11. <u>Indemnity and Expenses</u>.

- (a) The Grantor hereby agrees to indemnify the Bank from and against any and all claims, losses and liabilities arising out of or resulting from this Agreement (including, without limitation, enforcement of this Agreement), except claims, losses or liabilities resulting from the Bank's gross negligence or willful misconduct as determined by a final non-appealable judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction.
- (b) The Grantor will, upon demand, pay to the Bank the amount of any and all reasonable expenses, including the reasonable fees and expenses of its counsel and of any experts and agents, that the Bank may incur in connection with (i) the administration of this Agreement, (ii) the custody, preservation, use, or operation of, or the sale of, collection from or other realization upon, any of the Intellectual Property Collateral, (iii) the exercise or enforcement of any of the rights of the Bank hereunder or (iv) the failure by the Grantor to perform or observe any of the provisions hereof.

### SECTION 12. Amendments; Waivers; Supplements; Etc.

- (a) No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement, and no consent to any departure by the Grantor herefrom, shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the Bank, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given.
- (b) No failure on the part of the Bank to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right.

#### SECTION 13. Addresses for Notices.

All notices and other communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing (including telecopy or telex communication) and mailed, telecopied or delivered, if to the Grantor, addressed to it at the address set forth below its name on the signature pages hereof; if to the Bank, addressed to it at its address set forth in Section 9.2 of the Credit Agreement. All such notices and communications shall, when mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested or telecopied, be effective three (3) days after mailing, upon transmission by telecopier or addressed as aforesaid. Any party hereto may change the Person, address or telecopier number to whom or which notices are to be given hereunder, by notice duly given hereunder; provided, however, that any such notice shall be deemed to have been given hereunder only when actually received by the party to which it is addressed.

### SECTION 14. Continuing Security Interest, Assignments.

This Agreement shall create a continuing security interest in the Intellectual Property Collateral and shall (a) remain in full force and effect until the latest of (i) the indefeasible payment in full in cash of all of the Loans and all other monetary obligations then due and payable pursuant to or in connection with the Credit Agreement as acknowledged in writing by the Bank, and (ii) the date of termination in whole of the Term Commitment or the Revolving Commitment under the Credit Agreement, (b) be binding upon the Grantor, its successors and assigns and (c) inure to the benefit of the Bank and its successors, transferees and assigns. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing clause (c), the Bank may assign or otherwise transfer all or any portion of its rights and obligations under the Credit Agreement (including, without limitation, all or any portion of its Term Commitment and/or Revolving Commitment, the Loans owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it) to any other Person, and such other Person shall thereupon become vested with all the benefits in respect thereof granted the Bank herein or otherwise, in each case as provided in Section 9.7 of the Credit Agreement.

#### SECTION 15. Release and Termination.

- Upon any sale, lease, transfer or other disposition (other than granting any licenses) of any item of Intellectual Property Collateral in accordance with the terms of the Loan Documents, the Bank will, at the Grantor's expense, execute and deliver to the Grantor such documents as the Grantor shall reasonably request to evidence the release of such item of Intellectual Property Collateral from the security interest granted hereby; provided, however, that (i) at the time of such request and such release, no Default shall have occurred and be continuing, (ii) the Grantor shall have delivered to the Bank, at least thirty (30) Business Days prior to the date of the proposed release, a written request for release describing the item of Intellectual Property Collateral and the terms of the sale, lease, transfer or other disposition in reasonable detail, including the price thereof and any expenses in connection therewith, together with a form of release for execution by the Bank and a certification by the Grantor to the effect that the transaction is in compliance with the Loan Documents and as to such other matters as the Bank may request and (iii) the proceeds of any such sale, lease, transfer or other disposition shall be paid to, or in accordance with the instructions of, the Bank at the closing and (v) the Bank shall have approved such sale, lease, transfer or other disposition in writing.
- (b) Upon the latest of (i) the indefeasible payment in full in cash of the Loans (as defined in the Credit Agreement) and all other monetary obligations then due and payable pursuant to or in connection with the Credit Agreement as acknowledged in writing by the Bank, (ii) the date of termination in whole of the Revolving Credit Commitment under the Credit Agreement and (iii) the date of termination in whole of the Term Commitment under the Credit Agreement, the pledge and security interest granted by the Grantor hereby shall terminate and all rights to the Intellectual Property Collateral

shall revert to the Grantor. Upon any such termination, the Bank will, upon receipt of a written request and at the Grantor's expense, execute and deliver to the Grantor such documents as the Grantor shall reasonably request to evidence such termination.

#### SECTION 16. Execution in Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by telecopier shall be as effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.

#### SECTION 17. Governing Law; Terms.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York (without giving effect to its conflicts of law principles), except to the extent that the validity or perfection of the security interest hereunder, or remedies hereunder, in respect of the Intellectual Property Collateral are governed by the laws of a jurisdiction other than the State of New York. Unless otherwise defined herein or in the Credit Agreement, terms used in Article 9 of the N.Y. Uniform Commercial Code are used herein as therein defined.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by its officer, thereunto duly authorized, as of the date first above written.

ZING WIRELESS, INC.

Address:

21 River Road Wilton, Connecticut

ACCEPTED:

COMMERCE BANK, N.A.

By: \_\_\_ Name: Mark J. Sicinski

Title: Vice President

13

**TRADEMARK** 

**REEL: 003070 FRAME: 0239** 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by its officer, thereunto duly authorized, as of the date first above written.

ZING WIRELESS, INC.

Ву:		 
Title:		 

Address:

21 River Road Wilton, Connecticut

ACCEPTED:

COMMERCE BANK, N.A.

Name: Mark I Sicins

Citle: Vice President

STATE OF CONNECTICUT	$\Gamma)$	
	)	ss.:
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD	)	

On the 6th day of April in the year 2005 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared JONATHAN A. FLATOW, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the individual(s) whose name(s) is (are) subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her their signature(s) on the instrument, the individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which the individual(s) acted, executed the instrument.

Notary Public

[Notarial Seal]

TEXTS OF THE STATE OF THE STATE

## **SCHEDULE I**

TO

## INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

## **Patents and Patent Applications**

**NONE** 

<u>Title</u> <u>Patent No.</u> <u>Filing Date</u>

#### **SCHEDULE II**

TO

### INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

## **Trademark/Service Mark Registrations and Applications**

#### U.S. Trademark/Service Mark Registrations

Mark

Registration No.

Issued

## **Pending Applications of Grantor**

GOZING Service Mark. The Company has submitted an official electronic filing for a service mark for the word mark GOZING. The application was filed on November 9, 2004 and has a Serial No. of 78/514,053. The Company expects to receive a substantive response from the Trademark Office six months from the filing date above. The applicant for the filing was the Company and the filing was submitted through Bryan Cave LLP. The mark was submitted in International Class 035: Advertising and Marketing Services.

Application Serial No.

## **SCHEDULE III**

TO

# INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY SECURITY AGREEMENT

# **Copyrights**

**NONE** 

Title of Work

**RECORDED: 04/21/2005** 

Registration No.

<u>Issued</u>